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CONSF.NT AGREEMENT AND 
FINAL ORDER Respondent 

CONSENT AGREEMENT 

I. ST A TlJTORV AND REGULATORY AUTHORITY 

I. Pursuant to Section 309(g) o f' the Clean Water Act (' ·CWA" or "Act). 33 
U.S.C. § I 3 I 9(g), 1he Administrator of the United Stales Environmental Protection 
Agency ("EPA'') is authorized to assess administrati ve penalties against persons who 
violate Section 30 l (a) of' the Ac1, id. § 131 l(a). The Administrator has delegated this 
authority to the Regional Administrator of EPA Region Ill. who in tum has delegated this 
authority to the Director. Water Protection Division ('·Complainant"). 

2 . This Consent Agreement is en tered into by the Complainant and the Town 
o r Bridgeville. Delaware ( "13ridgcville" or "Respondent"), pursuant to Section 309(g) o f' 
the CWA and the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative 
Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation. Termination or Suspension of Permits 
("Consolidated Rules"). 40 C.F.R. hut 22. 

3. The Consolidated Rules, at 40 C.F.R.§ 22. l 3(b) provide in pertinent pa1t 
that where the parties agrcl' to settlement of one or more causes of' action hefore the filing 
of'l! complaint. a proceeding s imul taneously may be commenced and concluded hy the 
issuance of a consent agreement and linal order pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22. I 8(h)(2) and 
(3) . Pursuant thereto. th is Consl'nl Agreement ,md final Order ("C/\FO'') simultaneously 
commence and conclude this administrati ve proceeding against Respondent. 
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4. Section 309lg,)(2)(B) of the Clean Water /\ct. 33 U .S.C. § 13 l 9(g)(2)(B). 

authorizes the assessment of administrative penalties against any person who violates any 
>IPOES permit condition or limitation in an amount not to exceed$ l 0,000 per day for 
each day of violation, up to a total penalty amount of$ l 25JJOO. 

5. Pursuant to the Civil :Vlonctary Penalty lnllation Adjustment Rule, 40 
C.F.K. Part 19. and Section J09(g)(2)(B) of the Act, 33 lJ.S.C. § 1319(g)(2)(R), any 
person who has violated any NPOES pcnnit condition or limitation after January 12, 
2009 is liable for an administrative penalty not to exceed $16,000 per day for each day or 
violation up to a total penalty amount of $177 .500 for violations that occurred between 
January 12, 2009 and l)ecembcr 6. 20 l J. and $1 !!7.500 per proceeding for violations that 
occurred after December 6. 2013. 

6. Pursuant to Section 309(g)(4){A) of the Act. 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(4)(J\), 
and 40 C.F.R. § 22.45(b). F.PA is providing public notice and an opportunity to comment 
on the Consent Agreement prior to issuing the Final Order. In addition. pursuant to 
Section 309(g)( I )(A). F.PA has consulted with the Delaware I )epartment of Natural 
resources and Environmental Control ("DNRF.C) regarding this action. and will mail a 
copy of this document to the appropriate DNREC of'ficial. 

7. Section 30l(a) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 131 l(a). prohibits the discharge of 
any pollutant (other than dredged or fill material) from a point source into waters of the 
1Jnited States except in compliance with a permit issued pursuant to the National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ("NPOES") program under Section 402 of the 
Act, 33 lJ.S.C. § 1342. 

S. Section 402(a) or the Act, 33 1.1.S.C. § 1342(a). provides that the 
Administrator of EP/\ may issue permits under the NPDF.S program for the discharge of 
pollutants from point sources to waters or the IJnited States or may authorize states to 
issue such permits pursuant to Section 402(i) of the Act, 33 lJ.S.C. § I 342(i). The 
discharges are subject to specific terms and conditions as prescribed in the NPDF.S 
permit. 

'). Federal regulations promulgated pursuant Lo the CWA define the phrase 
··waters of the United States" to include. among other things. (i) all waters which are 
currently used. were used in the past. or may be susceptible to use in interstate or foreign 
commerce. including all waters which are subject to the ebb and llow or the tide; (ii) all 
interstate waters; (i ii) all other waters such as intrastate lakes. rivers and streams, 
including intcrrniltclll streams, the use. degradation. or dcstrnction of which would or 
could affect interstmc commerce; (iv) tributaries of waters of the L;nited States, and (v) 
all waters adjacent to these waters. 40 C.F.R. § 122.2. 
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10. ··Pollutant·' as defined at Section 502(6) or the CW A, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(6), 
and 40 C.F.R. § 122.2 means dredged spoil. solid waste, incinerator residue, filter 
backwash. sewage. garbage. sewage s ludge. munitions, chemical wastes, biological 
materials, rad ioactive materials .. . heat. wrecked or discarded equipment, rock, sand, 
cellar dirt and industrial, municipal. and agricultural waste discharged into water. 

11. Discharge of a pollutant"' includes ··any addition of any pollutant or 
comhination of pollutants to waters of the United States from any point source.'" 40 
C.F.R. § 122.2. 

12 . Section 502(5) of the CW/\. 33 li.S.C. § 1362(5), delines the term 
··person·· as .. an individual. corporation. partnership. association, State, municipality. 
commission. or political subdivision of a State. or any interstate hody". 

13. Section 402(a)(2) of the CW A directs the /\dministrator to prescribe 
conditions and limitations, including effluent limitations. for NP DES pem1its to ensure 
compliance with the requirements of the CW.A.. 33 U.S.C. § l 342(a)(2); see also 33 
U.S.C. § 1311. Effluent limitations, as deli ned in Section 502( 11) of the CW/\, 33 
lJ.S.C. § 1362(1 1). are restrictions on quantity. rate, and concentration of chemical. 
physical. biological. and other constituents which are discharged from point sources. 

14. Pursuant Lo Section 402(b) of the /\ct. 33 U.S.C. § 1342(h), EPA 
authorized the State or Delaware to issue )(PDES permits within Delaware on April I , 
1974. 

II. FINDINGS OF FACT. JURISDICTIONAL Al.LEGATIONS A~D 
CONCLUSIONS OF LA \V 

15. The Town of Bridgevi ll e. Delaware(" Oridgcvi llc'' or ··Respondent") is a 
.. municipality•· within the meaning of Sect ion 502(4) of the Act. 33 U.S.C. § 1362(4). 

16. Bridgeville is a "person" within the meaning o l"Section 502(5) of the Act, 
''l.iSC" " 1'6?(") ,.)J •. • . :')' ., _. ) . 

l 7. At all times relevant to this Order. Respondent has owned and/or operated 
a municipal wastewater treatment lac ility (""Facility"). located at the intersection of Main 
Street and Route 13 Alternate in Bridgeville. Delaware. 
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18. Rcsponcknt"s Facility discharges Ihm, outfall 001 to the Nanticoke River. 

which meets the definition of ·'waters 01 the United States" within the meaning of 
Section502(7)ofthcAct,33 lJ.S.C. § 1362(7)and40C.F.R. § 122.2. 

19. On January 7, 2009 DNRF.C issued NPDES Permit No. VE0020249, with 
an effective date of fcbruary I, 2009 and an expiration date of January 31, 2012 (the 
2009 NPVES Permit) to the Town of' Bridgeville. The 2009 NPVES permit authori;,.ed 
Dridgevillc to discharge from the Faci lity through Point Source 00 l, in accordance with 
all the terms and conditions or the 2009 pennit. The 2009 NPVES permit was 
administratively extended to J\pril I . 20 14. 

20. On February 27. 2014 VNREC issued NPDF.S Pem1it No. DE0020249, 
with an elfrclive date of April I, 2014 and an expiration date of' March 31, 2019 (the 
2014 NPDF.S Pem, it), to the Town of Bridgeville. The 2014 NPDF.S Pem,it authorized 
Bridgeville to discharge from the facility through Point Source 001, in accordance with 
all the terms and conditions of the 2014 permit. 

Count 1: Failure to :vtaintain Facilities Operation in Good \.Vorking Order and 
Operation 

21. Part II.A. Management Requirements, 3. Facilities Operation of' 
Bridgeville's 2014 NPDES Permit requires that "The permittce shall at all times maintain 
in good working order and operate as el'liciently as possible all collection and treatmenl 
facilities and systems (and related appurtenances) installed or used by the pennittee for 
water pollution control and abatement to achieve compliance with the terms and 
conditions of th is permit." 

22. According to a DNREC inspection report dated September 8.2014 and 
November 20. 2014. Respondent failed to properly maintain and operate all of its 
required Rotating Biological Contactor Tanks (RBCs) and its Chlorine Contact Chamber 
at the Facility during a September 8. 2014 l)>JREC inspection al the Facility. According 
to a November 20. 2014 D>JRF.C "Manager's l)eficieney Warning Letter'' mailed to 
Bridgeville and explaining in more detail the observed NPDES permit violations. one of 
the Facility·s RBCs had been removed and the entire area where the fom1er RBC had 
been located was completely covered with sewage solids and was the source of thousands 
of !lies and an unacceptable sewage odor. DNRECs letter described this condition as an 
unhealthy operation of a wastewater treatment plant and a violation of' the 20 J 4 permit. 
During the DNREC inspection of the Chlorine Contact Chamber. the inspecl.Ors observed 
that the treated wastewater in the contact chamber was very murky looking and that there 
was an excessive accumulation of solids in the ch,unber that reduced the ellective 
disinfection of'the effluent. DNREC's November 20. 2014 letter stated lhal this solids 
buildup was a violation of the 2014 permit and that Bridgeville needed lo remove the 
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excess solids in the bottom of the chamber. DNREC did not assess any civil penalty for 
the violations observed <l uring the September 8, 2014 inspection. The removed and 
missing RBC and Chlorine Contact Chamber are pa1t of Respondent's collection and 
t reatment system installed or used by Respondent for water pollution control and 
abatement at the Facil ity. 

23. Respondent' s failure to ensure the proper operation and maintenance of all 
of its RBCs and its Chlorine Contact Chamber during the September 8, 2014 inspection is 
a violation of the 20 14 pem1it and Section 30 1 of the Act, 33 lJ.S.C. § 131 1. 

Count II: Failure to lmt>lement a Storm W>ller Plan in Accorda nce with the 
Nl'UES PHmit 

24. Pmt Ill. Special Conditions, 3. Ston11 Water Plan of llridgevi lle's 2009 
NPDES pem1it requires the pcnnittee to implement and maintain a Storm Water Plan 
(SWP) to minimize the discharge of contaminated storm water from its facility. 

25. During a September 28. 2012 D'JREC inspection of Respondent's 
Facility. the inspectors <lid not fi nd any records that the Bridgevi lle employees and 
contractors had completed any annual Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan training, 
as requi red by llridgcvillc's Storm Water Plan. since June 20 I 0. As a fo llow up of 
DNREC·s September 2!1.20 12 inspection. DNR.EC issued a November 8, 2012 
"Manager's Deficiency Warning Letter·· to Bridgeville. requiring Bridgevi ll e to ensure 
that all employees shall have received the required annual stonnwater re fresher training 
within 30 days ofBri<lgevil le's receipt of the warn ing leuer. DNREC did not assess any 
civi l penal ty for Bri<lgevi lle's failure to conduct the required arnrna l train ing for the year 
2011 . 

26. Responden t' s fail ure to implement and maintain its Storm Water Plan by 
fail ing to complete the required annual storm water training for its employees for 20 11 is 
a violation of the 20009 NPDF.S Pem1it and Section 301 ol'the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 131 1. 

Count 111: Failure :Vlcct NPT>ES Ellluent Limitations 

27. Part I. B. F. f'll uent T .imitations and Monitoring Requirements, I. Outfall 
001 - Effluent Limitations and Monitoring Requiremen ts of Bridgeville ·s 2009 NP DES 
pem1it sets effluent limitations for d ischarges from outfall 001 of its municipal 
wastewater treatment fac ility . The 2009 NPDES Penni! includes specific limitations fo r 
Total N itrogen (TN) anti BODS, including a daily average loading, a daily average 
concenlration, ,md a daily maximum concentration. 

5 



Ouckct No. C\.YA-03-2016-0096 
28. As reported in Responden t' s DMRs submitted to DNREC, the attached 

chart (/\tlachment A) lists specific occasions that l.lridgcville's discharges from outfall 
001 of the Faci lity violated the c fil uent limitations set forth in Part I. R. of the 2009 
Permit. 

29. Each of Respondent's discharges on numerous occasions since January 
2011, as listed in the attached chart, Attachment A. is a separate violation of the 2009 
NP DES pem1it and Section JO I of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1311. 

111. GRNF.RAL PROVISIONS 

30. For the purpose of this proceeding. Respondent admi ts the jurisdictional 
allegations set forth in this CA FO. 

CAl'O. 
3 I. Respondent neither admits nor denies the Findings of Fac t set forth in this 

32. Respondent waives any defenses it might have as to jurisdiction and 
venue, its right to contest the allegations through hearing or otherwise: and its right to 
appeal the proposed linal order accompanying the Consent Agreement. 

33. Respondent agrees not to contest EPA 's jurisdiction to issue and enforce 
this CAFO. 

34. Respondent hereby expressly waives it.s right to a hearing on any issue or 
law or fact in th is matter and consents to issuance or this CAl'O without adj udication. 

35. Respondent shall bear its own costs and allomey fees. 

36. The provisions of this CAFO shall be binding upon the Respondent, iL5 
officers, princi pals, directors, successors and assigns. 

37. The parties agree that settlement of this matter prior Lo the initiation or 
litigation is in the public interest and that cmry or this CAFO is the most appropriate 
means of resolving this matter. 
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IV. CIVIL PF.NALTY 

38 In full and final settlement of the Complainant's claims for civil penalties 
for the alleged violations identified herein, Respondent consents to the assessment or: and 
agrees to pay, in accordance with the tcnns set lcmh herein, the total administrative civil 
penalty of twelve thousand dollars ($12,000) with in thi11y (30) days of the effective date 
of this CAFO pursuant to 40 C.F.R. ~ 22.31 (c). 

39. The civil penalty amoum set forth in Paragraph 38. above, is hased on a 
number of factors, including the nature. circumstances, extent and gravity of the 
violation(s), Respondent's abi lity to pay. prior history of'compliance, degree of 
culpabi lity. economic beneiit or savings resulting from the vio lations. and such other 
matters as justice may require pursuant to the authority or Section 309(g) of the Act, 33 
U.S.C. § 13J9(g). 

40. Respondent shall pay the civil penalty amount described in Paragraph 38, 
above, plus any interest. admin istrative fees, and late payment penalties owed. in 
accordance with Paragraphs 39 through 43, below, by either cashier's check, certified 
check. or electronic wire transfer. in the frlllowing manner: 

a. All payments by RcspondcnL shall reference Respondent's name and 
address, and the Docket Number or this action; 

h. All checks shall be made payable to "United States Treasury''; 

c. All payments made by check and sent by regular mai l shall be addressed 
to: 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
Cincinnati Finance Center 
P.O. Rox 979077 
St. Louis. MO 63197-9000 

Primary Contact: Craig Stcilcn, (513) 487-209 1 
Secondary Contact: Molly Williams. (513) 487-2076 
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d. All payments made by check and sent by overnight delivery service shall 

be addressed for deli very to: 

lJ.S. F.nviromnental Protection Agency 
Cincinnati Finance Center 
P.O Rox 979077 
I 005 Convention Plaza 
SL-MO-C2-GL 
St. Louis. MO 63 10 I 

Primary Contact: Craig Stcl'len, (513) 487-2091 
Secondary Contact: Molly Williams, (513) 487-2076 

e. All payments made by check in any currency dra,\11 on banks with no 
USA branches shall be addressed for delivery to: 

Cincinnati Finance 
US EPA. MS-NWD 
26 W. M.L. King Drive 
Cincimiati. OH 45268-0001 

f. All payments made by electronic wire transfer shall be directed Lo: 

Fcdc-ral Reserve Bank of New York 
AB/\: 021030004 
Account Numher: 68010727 
SWIFT address: FR.i"IYUS33 
33 Liberty Street 
New York. NY 10045 

Field Tag 4200 of the Fcdwire message should react: 
" D 68010727 Environmental Protection Agency" 

g. All electronic payments made through Lhe Automated Clearinghouse 
(ACJ I). also known m; Remittance Express (RFX), shall be directed to: 

US Treasury REX / Cashlink ACH Receiver 
ABA: 051036706 
Account Number: 310006. Environmental Protect ion Agency 
CTX Format Transaction Code 22 - Checking 

Physical location of'U.S. Treasury faci lity: 
5700 Rivcrtcch Court 
Riverdale. MD 20737 
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Contact: John Schmid, (202) 874-7026 
Remittance Express (REX): (866) 234-568 1 

h. On-Line Payment Option: 

WWW.PA Y.GOV/paygov/ 

Enter sfo 1.1 in the search field. Open and complete the form. 

1. Additional payment guidance is available at: 

http://www.epa.gov/financial/makcpayment 

J. Payment by Respondent shall reference Respondent ·s name and address. and the 
F.PA Docket Number of this CAFO. 

A copy of Respondent's check or a copy of Respondem·s electronic fund transfer 
shall be sent simultaneously to: 

Robert J. Smolski 
Senior Assistant Regional Counsel 
U.S. EPA, Region Ill (3RC20) 
1650 Arch Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029 

and 

Ms. Lydia Guy 
Regional Hearing Clerk 
U.S. EPA. Region Ill (3RCOO) 
1650 Arch Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029 

41. Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 3717 and 40 C.F.R. § 13.1 1. EPA is entitled to assess 
interest and late payment penalties on outstanding debts owed to the United States and a charge 
lO cover the costs of processing and handling c1 del inquent c laim. as more fuJJy described below. 
Accordingly. Respondent's failure to make timely payment ,Ls specified herein shall result in the 
assessment oflme payment charges including interest, penalties. and/or administrative costs of 
handling delinquent debts. 
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42. Interest on the civil penalty assessed in th is CA FO wiJJ begin to accrue on the 
dale that a true and co1Tect copy of this CA FO is mailed or hand-delivered to Respondent. 
However. EP /\ will not seek to recover interest on any amount of the civil penalty that is paid 
wi thin thirty (30) calendar days after the date on which such interest begins to accrue. Interest 
wi ll be assessed at the rate of the t;nited States Treasury Lax and loan rate in accordance with 40 
C.F.R. § 13.1 l(a). 

43. The costs of the /\gcncy's administrative handling of overdue debts will be charged 
and assessed month I y throughout the period a debt is overdue. 40 C .F.R. § 13. 1 1 (b ). Pursuan L to 
Appendix 2 ofEPA's Resources Management Directives - Cash 1\llanagemen1, Chapter 9, EPA will 
assess a $15.00 administrative handling charge for administrative costs on unpaid penalties li,r the 
first thirty (30) day period after the payment is due and an additional $15.00 for each subseyuent 
thirty (30) days the penalty remains unpaid. 

44. A late payment penalty of six percent per year will be assessed monthly on any 
poltion of the civil penalty that remains delinyuent more than ninety (90) calendar days. 40 C.F.R. 
§ I 3.11 ( c). Should assessmen t of the penalty charge on the deht he required. it shall accrue from 
the first day payment is delinquent. 31 C.F.R. § 901.9(d). 

45. The penalty spccilied in Paragraph 38 shaJJ represent civil penalties m;se.ssed by EPA 
and shall not be deductible for purposes of Federal taxes. 

V. APPLICABLE LA \.VS 

46. This CAFO shall not relieve Respondent of its obl igation to comply with all 
appl icable provisions of federal. state or local law and ordinance, nor shall it he constrncd to be a 
ruling on. or dctcnn ination of, any issue related to any federal. stale or local permit. Nor docs th is 
C/\FO constitute a waiver. suspension or modification of the requirements ofthc CWA. 33 U.S.C. 
§§ 1251 el seq. , or any regulations promulgated thereunder. 

Vl. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS 

47. This C/\FO resolves only the civil claims for the speci fi c violations alleged herein. 
FPA reserves the right to comn1encc action against any person. including Respondent, in response 
Lo any condition which EPA determines may present and imminent and substantia l endangerment to 
the public health. public wel !are. or the enviromnent. In addition. chis settlement is subject to all 
limitations on the scope or resolution and to the reservation ofriglns set fo11h in Section 22. 18(c) of 
the Consolidated Rules o r Practice. Further, EP/\ reserves any rights and remedies available to ic 
under the Clean Water /\cl, 33 U.S.C. § 301 et seq., the regulations promulgated thereunder, and 
any other federal laws or regulations for which EP /\ has jurisdiction. Lo enforce the provisions of 
this CAFO. following its fil ing with the Regional Hearing Clerk. 
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48. Entry of this CAFO is a final settlement of all violations alleged in this CAFO. EPA 
shall have the right to institute a new and separate action lo recover additional civil penalties for the 
claims made in this Ci\FO, i r FPA obtains evidence that the information and/or representations of 
the Respondent are false, or, in any material respect. inaccurate. This right shall be in addition to 
all other rights and causes or action, civil or criminal. EPA may have under law or equity in such 
event. 

VII. FULL AND FINAL SATISFACTION 

49. This settlement shall constitute full and final satisfaction or all civil claims for 
penalties which Complainant has under Section 309(g) of the CWA. 33 U.S.C. § l319(g), for the 
violations alleged in this Ci\. Compliance with the requircmems and provisions of this CAFO shall 
not be a defense to any action commenced at any time for any other violation of the federal laws 
and/or regulations administered by EPA. 

VIII. PARTIES BOUND 

50. This C AFO shall apply to and he binding upon the EPA. Respondent. and 
Respondent's officers, employees. agents. successors and assigns. The undersigned representative 
of Respondent certilies that he or she is fully authorized by the pai1y represented to enter into the 
terms and conditions or this CAFO and to execute and legally bind that party to i t. 

IX. EFFECTIVE DAT!!: 

51. Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.45(b), this CAFO shall be issued after a 40-day public 
notice period is concluded. This CAFO will become final and effective thirty (30) days after it is 
filed with the Regional T learing Clerk, pursuant to Section 309(g)(5) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 
§ 13 l9(g)(5). or unti l a public comment process pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.45(bJ is concluded. 

X. E~TIRE AGRF:F.MENT 

52. This C1\FO constitutes the entire agreement and understanding or the parties 
concerning scHlement of the above-captioned action and there arc no reprcsemations, warranties, 
covenants. terms or conditions agreed upon between the parties other than those expressed in this 
CAFO. 

I l 
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XI. FINAL O RDRR 

COMMISSIONERS OF RR1DGEVILT.E 
A municipal corporation of the State of Delaware 

Date: JJlGu..(C_.h_.__-='2..!~q':b. 2D!(L) 
' Ry /J~:fl.~ 

President~ 

A"'" ~ Secretar, 

FOR THF U.S. E>IVIRONME>!TAT. PROTECTION AGEJ\iCY, REUION ITT 

SO ORDERED, pursuant to 33 U.S.C. I 319(g), and 40 C.f.R. Part 22, 

this 2c+l1 _ day of - -

Date: 

, 2016 

<=~~2k' 
Jon .'vi. Capacasa. Directo0 - -­
Watcr Protection Division 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I certify that on this date I caused to be sent by certified mail, retwn receipt 
requested, a copy of this "Consent Agreement and rinal Order" lo the following persons: 

Dermis L. Schrader 
Attorney at Law 
Morris James Wilson Halbrook & l3ayard LLP 
P.O. Box 690 
I 07 West Market Street 
Ucorgetovm, Delaware 19947-0690 

And the original and a copy delivered by hand to: 

Regional Hearing Clerk (3RCOO) 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region lll 
1650 Arch Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029 

Additionally, I caw;ed to be sent by first class mail a copy of this "Consent Agreement 
and Final Order" to the following persons: 

Gleim f. Davis 
Program Manager 
Compliance & Enforcement Branch 
Surface Water Discharges Section 
Delaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control 
89 Kings Highway 
Dover, Delaware J 990 I 

Robert J. Smofs 
Senior Assistant Regional Counsel 


